
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., October 21, 2025  

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Tuesday, October 14, 2025 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, October 19, 2025 
 
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – September 30, 2025    

       

 

                                                                                                                  PAGE (S)                                                        

IV.     NEW BUSINESS  

             Resolution No. FY2026-001 ……………….…………………………………………………      1 - 10 
             Resolution Approving the Write-Off of Tenant Accounts Receivable 
             as of September 30, 2025 

  

V. OLD BUSINESS 

1.  Approval of the LIHTC 2025 Qualified Allocation Plan (QAP) 

2.  Summary of Executive Director, Board Evaluation for CY2025 …………   11 - 48     

 

VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

Project Updates 

 

VII. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. Summer Vista II DE, LLC and Summer Vista III DE, LLC (collectively “Summer 

Vista”) - Discussion of Proposed 2025 LIHTC QAP 

2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, November 04, 2025 

 @ 12:00 p.m.   

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 





 







 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025                                                    Page 1 of 13 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., September 30, 2025 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of 
Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board meeting was called to order at 12:04 P.M., Tuesday, 
September 30, 2025, at the GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room. Acting 
Chairman Sanchez indicated that 4 of 6 members of the Board of Commissioners were present, 
representing a quorum and that the meeting would proceed as scheduled. 

 
Viewed 
virtually via 

ZOOM: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85872883740?pwd=fJr6KzYE687069C9WFXgTGqc2eFkkF.1 
YOUTUBE: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag 

BOC 
Commissioners 
Attendance 
 

Dr. John Rivera, Chairman                                        Virtual             In-Person                      
Nate Sanchez, Vice Chairman                                  Virtual             In-Person         
Anisia Delia, Commissioner                                      Virtual            In-Person             
Emilia Rice, Commissioner                                       Virtual             In-Person              
Victor Torres, Commissioner                                   Virtual             In-Person             
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner                     Virtual             In-Person    
 
*Request to attend meeting virtually was submitted via email and acknowledged by Acting Chairman 
Sanchez. 

GHURA 
Management/ 
Staff  

Elizabeth F. Napoli, Executive Director          Julie Lujan, MIS Administrator     Carlo Ongklungel  
Fernando B. Esteves, Deputy Director           Sonny Perez, AE Manager             Thalia Pablo  
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant                     Frances Danieli, Controller            
Narcissa Ada, AMP1 Manager                         Katherine Taitano, RP&E Chief Planner                            
Gina Cura, AMP2 Manager                              Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator                     
Patrick Bamba, AMP3 Manager                      Antonio Camacho, Housing Procurement Admin.                               
Philomena San Nicolas, AMP4 Manager       Pearly Mendiola, GT Manager                        
Jolyn Terlaje, CD Manager                               Nicole Alejandro, Section 8 Administrator                                                                
Miguel Fernandez, AE                                      Michael Ricuyal, AE       Ervin Santiago     
Maria Cherry Canete, AE                                  Patrick Luces          Andrew Manglona                      
 

Legal Counsel Eliseo M. Florig Jr., Legal Counsel for GHURA   
 

Public Ana Sahagon and Family/ Malcolm Stiles/ R. Marsil Johnson 
 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

              1st Printing – Tuesday, September 23, 2025 

   2nd Printing – Sunday, September 28, 2025 
 
   ACKNOWLEDGED BY ACTING CHAIRMAN SANCHEZ.  

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85872883740?pwd=fJr6KzYE687069C9WFXgTGqc2eFkkF.1


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025                                                    Page 2 of 13 
 

 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES: [556/25] Commissioner Torres moved 

to approve the board meeting minutes of August 26, 2025 and September 16, 2025, 

subject to corrections. Commissioner Corpus seconded the motion. There were no 

objections. Motion passed.  

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Mr. Malcolm Stiles- 
Moved to Item #1 
from Old Business  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[557/25] Acting Executive Director 
Esteves requested to have Mr. Malcolm 
Stiles be first to present before the board. 
Mr. Stiles was scheduled on the General 
Discussion/Announcements section of 
the agenda on pages 87-93 in the GHURA 
Board of Commissioners (BoC) 
September 30, 2025 meeting packet, 
found also on the GHURA website, 
www.ghura.org.  

 

There were no objections by the board 
members.  

 

Mr. Malcolm Stiles stated the following: 

• He is an Asan property owner which 
is located adjacent to the property 
that was owned by GHURA 

• Property was surveyed 
• Boundary line was located between 

the two properties and cuts through a 
portion of his house.  

• There was an error in the survey 
• More than two years ago, he met with 

GHURA to discuss how to rectify the 
issue regarding the boundary line 

• During the meeting, it was stated by a 
GHURA staff that discussions 
regarding the transfer of the GHURA 
property to Guam Waterworks was 
ongoing.  

• All in attendance of the meeting 
agreed that the transfer to Guam 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.ghura.org/


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025                                                    Page 3 of 13 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Waterworks would be the best 
option.  

• He offered to pay to have the 
properties resurveyed, prepare new 
plans, and recorded 

• All he wanted was for GHURA to 
show its support and work with him 
to correct the situation 

• He did engage the surveyor, he 
prepared new plans, and spent four 
to five thousand dollars.  

• The plans needed GHURA’s signature, 
then it would be forwarded to the 
Dept. of Land Management to be 
recorded.  

• A few amendments were made to the 
new plans, but it is was what Dept. of 
Land Management wanted to see.  

• GHURA stated that they needed to 
look into it more 

• It had been two years with no 
responses from GHURA staff 

• He was surprised to discover that 
GHURA had gone ahead and 
transferred the property to Guam 
Waterworks. 

• He suggested to the board that 
GHURA sign the plans, have it 
recorded, and write an amended 
document to Guam Waterworks 
stating that there was an oversight 
and would now cite the new plan 
instead of the old plan as being the 
description of the property in the 
Deed of Transfer.  

• He stated that it was important for 
him, Guam Waterworks, and GHURA 
to work together 

• He stated that all that was needed 
was a signature and to be recorded 
and it would have been done.  

• He stated that GHURA chose not to 
address his concerns but hopes to 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025                                                    Page 4 of 13 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

find a way to get the situation cleared 
up.  

Mr. Eliseo Florig, Jr., GHURA Legal Counsel, 
indicated that he did not believe that Mr. 
Stiles provided testimony, but rather  
information for the board with regard to 
what is going on and added that testimony is 
only taken when he is put under oath not to 
perjure himself.  

 

Mr. Florig stated the following: 

• This matter first came to him when 
he became in-house counsel on or 
about March of 2023 through several 
discussions with the CD Division and 
with Executive Director Napoli 

• No mention had ever been made 
regarding a directive or directions 
given to Mr. Stiles to survey the area 
using his personal funds  

• GHURA takes a stance on Mr. Stiles’s 
description of the boundary issue 
being easy to complete 

• There may be another owner who is 
deceased  

• Attempts at contacting heirs have 
been unsuccessful 

• This issue should have been 
addressed during the Urban Renewal 
stage, but was not 

• Mr. Stiles requested GHURA’s 
assistance 

• GHURA tried in earnest to assist Mr. 
Stiles to either allow him to purchase 
the sliver or property or to allow him 
to correct any boundary issues 

• Not being able to locate the heirs of 
the property made it difficult to 
move forward 

• On or about August 15, 2025, as 
indicated on pg. 87 of the board 
packet, a letter addressed to Mr. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025                                                    Page 5 of 13 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Stiles indicated the issues concerning 
the property 

• Due to the issues concerning the 
property, GWA requested from 
GHURA the ownership of the 
property 

• On or about November 18, 2024, 
Grant Deed was submitted to GWA 

• GHURA no longer has possession or 
jurisdiction of the property 

• Unfortunately, Mr. Stiles’s request 
for GHURA to work with Guam 
Waterworks to address the issues 
regarding the property, is beyond 
GHURA’s ability to do so 

• GHURA’s Community Develop 
Division is willing to escort Mr. Stiles 
to GWA to assist in discussions 
regarding possible solutions  

• As indicated in the letter to Mr. Stiles, 
this matter is considered closed by 
GHURA 

Acting Executive Director Esteves added that 
GHURA will assist in any way, but that no 
employee has the legal authority to transfer 
property. He also added that the Resolution 
passed by the board in 2021 directed the 
property to be transferred and was beyond 
the authority of the executive director or the 
deputy director to not transfer the property 
to GWA. He stated that there had been no 
evidence to substantiate the claim of 
encroachment of the original survey line. 
There has been no evidence, at the time of 
Urban Renewal, to support the idea that the 
boundaries are inaccurate.  

Acting Chairman Sanchez indicated that the 
board would like to work within its legal 
boundaries to assist Mr. Stiles in rectifying 
this property issue. However, the issue is no 
longer in GHURA’s hands and cannot offer 
any more than what was discussed. Mr. 
Florig recommended that Mr. Stiles schedule 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025                                                    Page 6 of 13 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

an appointment with GWA to discuss his 
property concerns. Once a scheduled 
appointment has been made, Mr. Stiles may 
contact the executive team at GHURA for 
assistance with discussions with GWA.  

Commissioner Corpus indicated that the 
letter addressed to Mr. Stiles stated that 
GHURA would aid him in meeting with GWA 
regarding his concerns. Mr. Florig indicated 
that to qualify the letter that was written by 
Executive Director Napoli, the letter 
addressed to Mr. Stiles was subject to the 
research that had been done by the CD 
Division and to provide context for GWA 
regarding the boundary lines. This would be 
the extent of the GHURA staff’s assistance for 
Mr. Stiles. 

Mr. Stiles indicated that he would like 
GHURA to be more proactive in the process. 
Mr. Florig stated that he had been proactive 
and had been in contact with Ms. Teresa 
Rojas, GWA’s Legal Counsel. He stated that 
Ms. Rojas is aware of Mr. Stiles’s concerns 
regarding the property and the situation.  

Acting Director Esteves stated that if Mr. 
Stiles initiates a petition and includes 
GHURA, the GHURA management can reach 
out to the GWA management to make them 
aware of the situation. However, GHURA 
cannot take a position, for or against, or 
advocate for any individual. Acting Director 
Esteves added that while GHURA has 
surrendered its rights to the property, there 
are other claimants to the same property so 
the resolution that Mr. Stiles seeks is not as 
easy as it seems.  

 

Acting Chairman Sanchez called for a recess 
at 12:57PM. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

No action taken 

 

 

 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025                                                    Page 7 of 13 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

I. V. OLD BUSINESS:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. Resolution No. 
FY2025-033- 
Resolution 
Commending Ms. 
Ana Sahagon, 
Interviewer Clerk, 
for her Dedication 
and Contributions 
to the Guam 
Housing and Urban 
Renewal Authority 
(GHURA) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Acting Chairman Sanchez reconvened the 
board meeting at 1:00PM. 

Acting Executive Director Esteves requested 
to move to Old Business, Item #3.     

 

 

 

[559/25] Acting Director Esteves read 
Resolution No. FY2025-033- Resolution 
Commending Ms. Ana Sahagon, 
Interviewer Clerk, for her Dedication and 
Contributions to the Guam Housing and 
Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) on 
pgs. 47-48 in the September 30, 2025 
GHURA Board of Commissioners (BoC) 
meeting packet which was also found on 
the GHURA website, www.ghura.org.  

 

Mrs. Narcissa Ada, AMP 1 Manager, 
congratulated and thanked Ms. Sahagon for 
her dedication and commitment to her team 
and to the families that she served.  

On behalf of the board, Acting Chairman 
Sanchez also thanked Ms. Sahagon for her 
years of hard work and commitment.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[558/25] Acting 

Chairman Sanchez 

acknowledged Acting 

Executive Director 

Esteves’s requests.  

 

 

[560/25] 
Commissioner Torres 
moved to approve 
Resolution No. 
FY2025-033- 
Resolution 
Commending Ms. Ana 
Sahagon, Interviewer 
Clerk, for her 
Dedication and 
Contributions to the 
Guam Housing and 
Urban Renewal 
Authority (GHURA). 
Commissioner Corpus 
seconded the motion. 
There were no 
objections. Motion 
passed unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.ghura.org/


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025                                                    Page 8 of 13 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

3. Intent of Award-IFB 
GHURA-25-12; Lead 
Abatement for 
AMPs 1, 2, and 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[561/25] Acting Director Esteves read the 

Intent of Award-IFB GHURA-25-12; Lead 

Abatement for AMPs 1, 2, and 4 on pg. 44-

46 in the September 30, 2025 GHURA 

Board of Commissioners (BoC) meeting 

packet which was also found on the 

GHURA website, www.ghura.org.  

Commissioner Delia asked why a bid was not 

submitted for Base Bid Item #1. Acting 

Director Esteves indicated that Base Bid 

Item #1 was sent, but bids were not 

submitted. Mr. Antonio Camacho, Housing 

Procurement Administrator, stated that 

reasons for “No Bid” were unknown.  

Commissioner Corpus indicated that the 

government estimate was at $1,771,200.00 

and asked if each Base Bid Item had 

individual estimates. Mr. Camacho stated 

that the government estimate was the total 

cost but was broken down in the 

procurement record. Commissioner Corpus 

requested that the breakdown be read into 

the record.  

Acting Director Esteves read the following 

Lead Based Paint Abatement Base Bids: 

• Government Estimate for AMP1- 

$1,797,840.00 

• Government Estimate for AMP2-

$355,806.00 

• Government Estimate for AMP4- 

$178,200.00 

Commissioner Corpus indicated that the 

total government estimates for the AMPs 

was more than the total government 

estimate listed in the packet.  Mr. Andrew 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.ghura.org/


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025                                                    Page 9 of 13 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Manglona, AE Planner, indicated that the 

total amount of all three bid items came to 

about $2.3 million. Acting Director Esteves 

added that the $1.7 million that the board is 

considering, reflects Bid Item#1. He 

requested that the team amend the record 

for the correct calculations. After correction 

was made, Acting Director Esteves read the 

total government estimate amount as 

$2,331,846.00, which is the aggregate of Bid 

Items one through three.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[562  /25] 

Commissioner Corpus 

moved to approve 

Intent of Award IFB-

GHURA-25-12; Lead 

Abatement for Base 

Bid Item #2 at 

$395,000.00 and Base 

Bid Item #3, AMP4, for 

$140,500.00 for a total 

of $535,500.00 with 

corrections to the 

government estimate, 

Bid Item #2 with a 

project timeline of two 

hundred consecutive 

calendar days and Bid 

Item #3 with a project 

timeline of sixty 

consecutive days. 

Contract is not to 

exceed the amount of 

$535,500.00. 

Commissioner Torres 

seconded the motion. 

There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously.  



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025                                                    Page 10 of 13 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

4. LIHTC 2025 
Qualified Allocation 
Plan (QAP) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[563/25] Acting Director Esteves directed 

the commissions to pgs. 1-43 in 

September 30, 2025, GHURA Board of 

Commissioners (BoC) meeting packet 

which was also found on the GHURA 

website, www.ghura.org. He stated the 

following: 

• Disagreements created delays of 

the issuance of the 2025 QAP 

• It is GHURA’s intent to try to issue 

the 2025 QAP to avoid risking 

losing the 2024 tax credits 

Ms. Katherine Taitano, RP&E Chief Planner, 

stated the following: 

• Presented the draft of the 2025 

Qualified Allocation Plan (QAP) 

• Requested approval from the board 

to release the Draft QAP for public 

comment 

• Until the public has the opportunity 

to engage with comment and board 

approves the final draft of the QAP, 

the QAP and the application will not 

be issued. 

• The timeline is abbreviated.  

• Anticipated completion of the entire 

process is early December 

• On page seven in the board packet is 

a timetable that outlines essential due 

dates.  

Acting Director Esteves indicated that the 

board made the determination based on the 

recommendation of the review panel to 

reserve 2023 credits, under the 2024 QAP to 

Flores Rosa Gardens LLC for its proposed 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.ghura.org/


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025                                                    Page 11 of 13 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

development. However, due to delays and 

disagreements, the 2023 credits were 

unfortunately lost. He added that GHURA 

would like to honor the board’s 

determination on the project itself and 

award the 2024 credits through the 2025 

QAP to make up the difference in the 2023 

credits that were lost. The total that would 

be available for new applications and 

competitive proposals is $5,021, 880.00 

Commissioner Corpus asked if there were 

major changes made to the QAP. Acting 

Director Esteves indicated that the Appeals 

Process was incorporated directly into the 

Action Plan, clarified the language regarding 

the process, and added a good standing 

requirement. Ms. Taitano indicated that they 

had also incorporated a proposal on tie 

breaking procedures. 

Commissioner Torres requested that a 

watermark be added to indicate that the 

document is a draft.  

Acting Director Esteves indicated that page 

seven, section 2A, highlights key dates. 

October 14 will be to approve the issuance of 

the QAP. There will be a one-month 

timeframe for submissions of applications. 

Application acceptance will close and there 

will be a ten-day review period. A 

recommendation will go to the board on 

December 2, 2025. On December 9, 2025 

board meeting will be when the board will 

decide on the award. Between December 9th 

and 31st, documents and letters will be 

issued and checklists will be reviewed to 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025                                                    Page 12 of 13 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

determine whether the process has been 

executed properly.  

Ms. Taitano added that the objective is to 

improve the process and be better prepared 

moving forward.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[564/25] 

Commissioner Corpus 

moved to approve the 

2025 Low Income 

Housing Tax Credit 

Qualified Allocation 

Plan for October 1, 

2025- October 13, 

2025, the public 

comment period. 

Commissioner Torres 

seconded the motion. 

There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously.  



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025                                                    Page 13 of 13 
 

 

VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

AGENDA ITAM 
 

DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Project Updates [565/25] Acting Director Esteves indicated 
that there were no updates.  

 

 

 

 

 
No action taken 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

VII. GENERAL DISCUSSION/ANNOUNCEMENTS/ADJOURNMENT: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

1. Next proposed 
scheduled Board 
Meeting: 
Tuesdays, 
October 14, 2025 

 

 

 

 

  

 

[566/25] 

Commissioner Torres 

moved to adjourn the 

September 30, 2025 

board meeting. 

Commissioner Delia 

seconded the motion. 

Meeting was 

adjourned at 1:39PM.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
SEAL 
 
             ______________________________ 
       Elizabeth F. Napoli 
       Board Secretary/Executive Director 
   
       Date __________________________ 

    













GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. FY2026-001 

 

 

Moved By:       Seconded By:   

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WRITE-OFF OF TENANT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2025 

 

WHEREAS, the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) is the Guam public housing authority that provides 

decent homes and suitable living environments for Guam families of low income to afford to pay for safe, 

sanitary and decent dwelling accommodations; and  

 

WHEREAS, the governance and well-being of GHURA is vested in the Board of Commissioners (BOC) and empowered 

by 12 Guam Code Annotated, Chapter 5, Section 5104; and  

 

WHEREAS, BOC Resolution No. FY2018-002 Resolution Adopting the Write-Off Policy for Uncollectible Accounts for 

GHURA Rental Properties; and 

 

WHEREAS, in the normal course of business, the Authority is involved in transactions that result in monies being owed to 

GHURA for which they are unable to collect, and as necessary,  

 

WHEREAS, the Property Site Managers and Section 8 Administrator submit summaries of debts considered for write-off 

to prevent overstating of assets which are affecting the Authority’s financial performance; and 

 

WHEREAS, currently, GHURA's receivables include outstanding accounts, which have remained in GHURA's books for 

over 90 days as of September 30, 2025, as indicated below; and 

 

Property Site  Write-Off Amount 

AMP 1                                $ 39,583.52 
AMP 2   $   1,155.00 
AMP 3   $   5,591.15 
AMP 4   $ 64,502.69 

                       $110,832.36 
 

WHEREAS, GHURA, through the Property Site Managers and Section 8 Administrators, exert diligent collection efforts in 

pursuit of outstanding receivables, and although ongoing collection efforts are abandoned on these accounts, 

GHURA reserves the right and duty to collect should the opportunity arise; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is in accordance with GHURA's procedure and good business practices to write-off accounts receivables 

after all reasonable collection procedures have been exhausted and there is not a reasonable expectation that 

the accounts will be collected; now, therefore be it  

 

RESOLVED, that the BOC approves writing off $110,832.36 of GHURA receivables after all reasonable collection 

procedures have been exhausted and there is not a reasonable expectation that the accounts will be collected. 

 
 
IN A SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – OCTBER 21, 2025 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINED:     
 
   
                                                                                            I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and                             

correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the Guam Housing 
and Urban Renewal Authority Board of Commissioners on 
October 21, 2025. 

 
 
               (SEAL)                                                                  
                                                                                            _________________________________________ 

                 Fernando B. Esteves 
                                                         Board Secretary / Executive Director, Acting 

 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 1 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 2 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 3 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 4 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 5 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 6 of 48



N
O

.
U

N
IT

 #
M

-O
 D

AT
E

RE
AS

O
N

 F
O

R 
TE

RM
IN

AT
IO

N
D

AT
E 

O
F 

LA
ST

 
PA

YM
EN

T

D
AT

E 
CL

O
SE

-
O

U
T 

PR
O

CE
SS

ED

 (U
R)

 o
r R

en
t 

Ba
la

nc
e 

af
te

r 
m

ov
e-

ou
t 

 L
AT

E 
FE

ES
 

 W
O

RK
 

O
RD

ER
S 

 C
le

an
in

g 
Ch

ar
ge

s 

 L
eg

al
, 

Co
ur

t 
Fe

es
 

 S
ec

ur
ity

 
D

ep
os

it 
 D

RT
 F

EE
S 

 A
/R

 B
A

L 
O

N
 

A
CC

O
U

N
T 

CO
M

M
EN

TS

1
89

M
AO

5/
29

/2
02

5
N

O
N

-C
O

M
PL

IA
N

T
30

 D
AY

S 
N

O
TI

CE
5/

5/
20

25
7/

2/
20

25
 $

   
   

   
 2

7.
00

 
72

0.
01

$ 
   

   
(1

50
.0

0)
$ 

  
15

.0
0

$ 
   

   
61

2.
01

$ 
   

   
   

   
M

AI
L 

CE
RT

IF
IE

D
 R

EC
EI

VE
D

,
N

O
 R

ES
PO

N
SE

2
96

M
AO

5/
23

/2
02

5
N

O
N

-C
O

M
PL

IA
N

T
LE

AS
E 

VI
O

LA
TI

O
N

S
30

 D
AY

S 
N

O
TI

CE
3/

14
/2

02
5

7/
2/

20
25

 $
   

 1
,1

85
.7

8 
22

3.
93

$ 
   

   
(1

50
.0

0)
$ 

  
15

.0
0

$ 
   

   
1,

27
4.

71
$ 

   
   

   
M

AI
L 

CE
RT

IF
IE

D
 R

EC
EI

VE
D

,
N

O
 R

ES
PO

N
SE

3
23

6J
Q

Q
7/

14
/2

02
5

N
O

N
-C

O
M

PL
IA

N
T

N
O

N
-P

AY
M

EN
T 

O
F 

RE
N

T
30

 D
AY

S 
N

O
TI

CE
6/

10
/2

02
5

8/
4/

20
25

3,
78

5.
00

$ 
   

54
.4

3
$ 

   
   

  
(1

50
.0

0)
$ 

  
15

.0
0

$ 
   

   
3,

70
4.

43
$ 

   
   

   
O

U
TS

TA
N

D
IN

G
 B

AL
AN

CE
 

SE
N

T 
VI

A 
CE

RT
IF

IE
D

 M
AI

L 
- 

PE
N

D
IN

G

5,
59

1.
15

$ 
   

TO
TA

L 
= 

G
U

AM
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 &

 U
RB

AN
 R

EN
EW

AL
 A

U
TH

.
M

ov
e-

O
ut

 R
ep

or
t

Ac
co

un
tin

g
Re

po
rt

 D
at

e 
Fr

om
 0

7/
01

/2
02

5 
to

 0
9/

30
/2

02
5

AM
P3

 F
IS

CA
L 

YE
AR

 - 
(2

02
5)

 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 7 of 48



Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero 
Governor of Guam 

Joshua F. Tenorio 
Lt. Governor of Guam 

John J. Rivera 
Chairman 

Nathanael P. Sanchez 
Vice Chairman 

Anisia S. Delia 
Commissioner 

Emilia F. Rice 
Commissioner 

Victor R Torres 
Commissioner 

Karl E. Corpus 
Resident O:>mmissioner 

Elizabeth F. Napoli 
Executive Director 

Fernando B. Esteves 
Deputy Director 

G 
Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority 

Aturidat Ginima' Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan 
117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910 

Phone: (671 )477-985 1 · Fax: (671 )300-7565 · TIY: (671)472-3701 
Website: www.ghura.org 

October 6, 2025 

TO: Frances Danieli, Controller k ~ 
FROM : Property Site Manager, AMP4 

SUBJECT: Recommend Writing Off Tenant Accounts Receivable 

EQUAL l-OUSING 
OPPORrUtiiTY 

Quarter Ending: September 30, 2025 Total: $64,502.69 

I have reviewed AMP4's Tenant Accounts Receivable for the period through 

September 30, 2025. I request a total of $64,502.69 to be written off from the GL 
books. 

Attached is the account to be written off due to inactivity from the former resident. 
Please note that these former tenants have not remitted any payments due within 
the periods stated in their collection letters. DRT has been collecting a $15 fee for 
each account. This fee has been applied to each of these accounts. 

These inactive accounts affect the Authority's financial performance, and I 
recommend that these accounts be written off and forwarded to the Department of 
Revenue and Taxation for collection. 

Please feel free to contact me at (671} 475-1394 for any questions or concerns. 

Ml~~~ 
PHILOMENA SAN NICOLAS 

Attachment 

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities. 
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator. 

The Coordinator can be contacted at the above address and telephone numbers. 
 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 8 of 48



G
U

A
M

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 &
 U

R
B

A
N

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L 
A

U
T

H
. 

R
e

p
o

rt
 D

a
te

 f
o

r 
P

E
R

IO
D

 T
H

R
O

U
G

H
 S

E
P

T
E

M
B

E
R

 3
0

, 
20

2S
 

D
A

TE
 O

f 
lA

ST
 

D
A

TE
 C

LO
SE

-O
U

T 
(U

R
)o

rR
e

n
t 

C
le

a
n

in
g

 
LE

G
A

L,
 

S
e

cu
ri

ty
 

A
/R

B
A

L
O

N
 

N
O

. 
U

N
IT

#
 

M
-O

D
A

T
E

 
R

E
A

S
O

N
 F

O
R

 T
E

R
M

IN
A

T
IO

N
 

B
al

an
ce

 a
ft

e
r 

D
R

T
 F

EE
S 

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

 
PA

Y
M

EN
T 

PR
O

C
ES

SE
D

 
C

h
a

rg
e

s 
C

O
U

R
T

 F
E

E
S

 
D

e
p

o
si

t 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T 

m
o

ve
-o

u
t 

FO
R

 W
R

IT
E

-O
FF

-J
U

LY
-S

EP
 2

02
5 

1 
N

O
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

E
 T

O
 F

O
LL

O
W

-U
P

 

2
5

A
D

A
M

 
4

/2
6

/2
0

2
4

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 D

IS
C

O
N

N
E

C
T

IO
N

 
1

/9
/2

0
2

4
 

7
/1

/2
0

2
5

 
5

6
3

6
.8

6
 

1
1

7
9

.6
1

 
0 

1
5

 
-1

5
0

 
$ 

6,
68

1.
47

 
L

ff
iE

R
. 

2 
N

O
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

E
 T

O
 F

O
LL

O
W

-U
P

 

1
1

A
D

A
M

 
1

2
/2

6
/2

0
2

4
 L

E
A

S
E

 V
IO

L
A

T
IO

N
S

 
1

1
/9

/2
0

2
4

 
3

/1
2

/2
0

2
5

 
2

3
5

 
1

9
0

 
1

5
 

-1
5

0
 

$ 
29

0.
00

 
L

ff
iE

R
. 

3 
N

O
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

E
 T

O
 F

O
LL

O
W

-U
P

 

1
3

A
D

A
M

 
1

1
/4

/2
0

2
4

 N
O

N
-P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 O
F 

R
E

N
T 

4
/2

/2
0

2
4

 
7

/1
/2

0
2

5
 

1
4

1
3

1
 

1
2

5
6

.0
9

 
0 

1
5

 
-1

5
0

 
$ 

15
,2

52
.0

9 
L

ff
iE

R
. 

4 
9

/1
9

/2
0

2
4

 
2

4
B

P
A

Q
 

A
B

A
N

D
O

N
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 U

N
IT

 
4

/1
/2

0
2

3
 

7
/1

/2
0

2
5

 
4

2
3

3
 

N
O

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

 T
O

 F
O

LL
O

W
-U

P
 

9
4

5
.1

9
 

0 
1

5
 

-1
5

0
 

$ 
5,

04
3

.1
9 

L
ff

iE
R

. 

3
0

-D
A

Y
 V

O
L

U
N

T
A

R
Y

 N
O

T
IC

E
 

N
O

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

 T
O

 F
O

LL
O

W
-U

P
 

5 
5

/1
9

/2
0

2
5

 
1

/2
7

/2
0

2
5

 
7

/2
/2

0
2

5
 

3
0

4
.8

8
 

-1
5

0
 

$ 
1

6
A

D
U

E
 

G
IV

E
N

 
4

7
0

 
0 

1
5

 
63

9
.8

8 
L

ff
iE

R
. 

6 
T

E
R

M
IN

A
T

IO
N

-
G

R
IE

V
A

N
C

E
 

N
O

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

 T
O

 F
O

LL
O

W
-U

P
 

4
3

B
D

A
M

 
1

0
/1

6
/2

0
2

3
 H

E
A

R
IN

G
 

9
/1

7
/2

0
2

3
 

7
/1

/2
0

2
5

 
-5

0
 

2
0

7
1

2
.0

8
 

0 
1

5
 

-1
5

0
 

$ 
20

,5
27

.0
8 

L
ff

iE
R

. 

7 
N

O
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

E
 T

O
 F

O
LL

O
W

-U
P

 

lA
D

U
E

 
1

2
/2

6
/2

0
2

4
 N

O
N

-P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 R

E
N

T 
1

0
/2

2
/2

0
2

4
 

3
/1

2
/2

0
2

5
 

5
0

9
9

 
1

0
7

.3
6

 
0 

1
5

 
-1

5
0

 
$ 

5,
07

1
.3

6 
L

ff
iE

R
. 

8 
N

O
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

E
T

O
 F

O
LL

O
W

-U
P

 

84
S

S
A

 
4

/3
/2

0
2

5
 L

E
A

S
E

 V
IO

L
A

T
IO

N
S

 
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
5

 
4

/1
4

/2
0

2
5

 
6

5
7

 
2

0
0

.4
7

 
0 

1
5

 
-1

5
0

 
$ 

7
2

2
.4

7
 

L
ff

iE
R

. 

9 
N

O
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

E
 T

O
 F

O
LL

O
W

-U
P

 

lB
D

U
E

 
1

2
/1

9
/2

0
2

4
 A

B
A

N
D

O
N

M
E

N
T

 O
F 

U
N

IT
 

6
/1

/2
0

2
4

 
7

/1
/2

0
2

5 
6

3
3

 
1

0
3

4
.9

 
0 

1
5

 
-1

5
0

 
$ 

1,
53

2
.9

0 
L

ff
iE

R
. 

1
0

 
N

O
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

E
 T

O
 F

O
LL

O
W

-U
P

 

9
B

D
A

M
 

1
0

/1
7

/2
0

2
4

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 D

IS
C

O
N

N
E

C
T

IO
N

 
3

/2
1

/2
0

2
4

 
7

/1
/2

0
2

5
 

-1
8

2
7 

6
1

5
8

.8
5 

0 
1

5
 

-1
5

0
 

$ 
4

,1
96

.8
5 

L
ff

iE
R

. 

N
O

N
-C

O
M

P
L

IA
N

C
E

; 
3

0
-D

A
Y

 
N

O
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

E
 T

O
 F

O
LL

O
W

-U
P

 
1

1
 

1
9

B
D

A
M

 
4

/3
0

/2
0

2
5

 N
O

T
IC

E
 

6
/1

/2
0

2
5

 
6

/1
8/

2
0

2
5

 
0 

1
0

0
2

.7
3

 
0 

1
5

 
-1

5
0

 
$ 

86
7

.7
3 

L
ff

iE
R

. 

1
2

 
N

O
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

E
 T

O
 F

O
LL

O
W

-U
P

 

3
0

B
P

A
Q

 
1

0
/9

/2
0

2
4

 R
E

LO
C

A
T

IN
G

 O
F

F
-I

S
LA

N
D

 
8

/2
9

/2
0

2
4

 
7

/1
/2

0
2

5
 

9
8

2
 

9
5

9
.2

2
 

0 
1

5
 

-1
5

0
 

$ 
1,

80
6

.2
2 

LE
TT

E
R

. 

1
3

 
A

C
C

E
P

T
E

D
 U

N
D

E
R

 A
N

O
T

H
E

R
 

N
O

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

 T
O

 F
O

LL
O

W
-U

P
 

2
3

A
D

A
M

 
1

2
/1

1
/2

0
2

3
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 
1

1
/5

/2
0

2
3

 
7

/1
/2

0
2

5 
7

4
5 

1
1

5
 

0 
1

5
 

-1
5

0
 

$ 
7

2
5

.0
0

 
L

ff
iE

R
. 

1
4

 
N

O
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

E
 T

O
 F

O
LL

O
W

-U
P

 

lS
A

D
U

E
 

5
/9

/2
0

2
5

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 D

IS
C

O
N

N
E

C
T

IO
N

 
5

/1
/2

0
2

5
 

7
/2

/2
0

2
5

 
0 

1
2

8
1

.4
5

 
0 

1
5

 
-1

5
0

 
$ 

1,
14

6
.4

5 
LE

TT
E

R
. 

5 
64

,5
02

.6
9 

 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 9 of 48



AM
P 

1
AM

P 
2

AM
P 

3
AM

P 
4

G
T

Se
cu

rit
y 

De
po

sit
(2

,7
75

.0
0)

(1
,8

00
.0

0)
(2

,7
00

.0
0)

(3
,0

00
.0

0)
(5

0.
00

)

DR
T 

Fe
es

28
5.

00
18

0.
00

27
0.

00
28

5.
00

15
.0

0

W
or

k 
O

rd
er

s
36

0.
00

1,
63

7.
15

La
te

 F
ee

s
30

.0
0

-
Cl

ea
ni

ng
 C

ha
rg

es
43

,9
79

.2
9

1,
21

5.
00

12
,7

51
.6

7
37

,5
30

.7
0

30
0.

00

Re
nt

 B
al

an
ce

12
,0

11
.0

0
8,

29
2.

98
26

,4
49

.8
3

36
,6

17
.8

6
-

W
rit

e 
O

ff 
Am

ou
nt

53
,8

30
.2

9
7,

88
7.

98
38

,4
08

.6
5

69
,9

43
.8

1
26

5.
00

 (1
0,

00
0.

00
)

 -

 1
0,

00
0.

00

 2
0,

00
0.

00

 3
0,

00
0.

00

 4
0,

00
0.

00

 5
0,

00
0.

00

 6
0,

00
0.

00

 7
0,

00
0.

00

 8
0,

00
0.

00

In US Dollars

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 2

02
5 

W
rit

e 
O

ff
AM

Ps
 &

 G
T

Re
nt

 B
al

an
ce

Cl
ea

ni
ng

 C
ha

rg
es

La
te

 F
ee

s
W

or
k 

O
rd

er
s

DR
T 

Fe
es

Se
cu

rit
y 

De
po

sit
W

rit
e 

O
ff 

Am
ou

nt

 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 10 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 11 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 12 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 13 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 14 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 15 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 16 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 17 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 18 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 19 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 20 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 21 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 22 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 23 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 24 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 25 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 26 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 27 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 28 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 29 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 30 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 31 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 32 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 33 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 34 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 35 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 36 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 37 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 38 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 39 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 40 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 41 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 42 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 43 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 44 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 45 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 46 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 47 of 48



 
Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

 
PAGE 48 of 48




